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AGENDA 
 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS  
HELD REMOTELY* 

THREE LAKES WATER AND SANITATION DISTRICT 
TUESDAY, JULY 9, 2024 – 6:30 PM 

 

*Join the meeting from your computer, tablet or smartphone at 
https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/644196661 

or dial in using your phone at 1 (877) 568-4106 Access Code: 644-196-661 
 
 

1. Call to Order:  Chairman Reed 
a. Motion to excuse Vice Chairman Golden 

 
2. Comments by the Chair 

 
3. Introductions of Public Present  

 
4. Acceptance of Minutes: June 10, 2024 Meeting Minutes 

 
5. Matters Before the Board 

a. McMahan & Associates: 2023 Audit Presentation 
b. Motion to approve 2023 Audit 
c. Discussion and Staff Direction Related to Engineering Firm Issue 
 

6. Public Comment 
This time is reserved for members of the public to make a presentation to the Board on 
items or issues that are not scheduled on the agenda. Each member will be given three 
minutes time. The Board will not discuss/debate those items, nor will the Board make 
any decisions on items presented during this time. Rather, the Board will refer the items 
to staff for follow-up. 
 

7. Financial Reports:    
a. Motion for approval of Check List for the month of June 2024 
b. Acceptance of Financial Statements for the month of June 2024 

 
8. Matters for Discussion as Brought Forth by Board Members 

 
9. Superintendent Report 

 
10. District Manager Report 

https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/644196661
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RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 
 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
THREE LAKES WATER AND SANITATION DISTRICT  

MONDAY, JUNE 10, 2024  4:00 PM 
 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

A regular meeting of the Board of Directors was called to order by Chairman Reed, at 4:08 p.m. 
The meeting was held at the Grand Lake Center, 301 Marina Drive, and remotely. 

  
Directors Present:  Matt Reed – Chairman  
 Mike Golden – Vice Chairman 
 Scott Huff – Secretary/Treasurer  

Stephanie Conners – Director 
Mark Gibson – Director  

    
Staff Present:  Katie Nicholls – District Manager 

Mike Gibboni – Superintendent 
 

2. COMMENTS BY THE CHAIRMAN 
Chairman Reed thanked the Board and Staff for attending the Strategic Planning Session 
Workshop 
 

3. INTRODUCTIONS OF PUBLIC PRESENT 
Janna Sampson  
 

4. ACCEPTANCE OF MINUTES 
By MOTION, second, and unanimous vote the May 13, 2024 Meeting Minutes were approved 
as presented. 
 

5. MATTERS BEFORE THE BOARD 
a. Consideration of Software License Agreement with Muni-Link 

District Manager Nicholls noted that she negotiated a lower implementation fee and that the 
project would start officially in 2025. By MOTION, second, and unanimous vote the Board 
approved the engagement of Muni-Link for billing software services through the software 
license agreement.  
 

6. PUBLIC COMMENT 
None. 
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7. FINANCIAL REPORTS 
By MOTION, second, and unanimous vote the checklist for the month of May 2024 was 
approved. The financial documents for May were reviewed, and accepted as presented.  
 

8. MATTERS OF DISCUSSION AS BROUGHT FORTH BY BOARD MEMBERS  
None. 
 

9. SUPERINTENDENT REPORT 
Superintendent Gibboni presented the Superintendent report.  
 

10. DISTRICT MANAGER REPORT 
District Manager Nicholls presented the District Manager report.  

With no further business before the Board, the meeting was adjourned at 4:16 p.m. 
 
 
______________________________                    ______________________________ 
 Katie Nicholls, Reporting Secretary                Scott Huff, Secretary/Treasurer 
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To the Board of Directors
Three Lakes Water and Sanitation District
Grand Lake, Colorado

We have audited the financial statements of Three Lakes Water and Sanitation District for the year ended 
December 31, 2023. Professional standards require that we provide you with the following information 
related to our audit.

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Policies

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant 
accounting policies used by Three Lakes Water and Sanitation District are described in the Notes to the 
financial statements. No new accounting policies were adopted and the application of existing policies 
was not changed during the year. We noted no transactions entered into during the year for which there is 
a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. There are no significant transactions that have been 
recognized in the financial statements in a different period than when the transaction occurred.

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are 
based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions 
about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance 
to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ 
significantly from those expected. The most sensitive estimates affecting the financial statements were: 

Estimated useful lives for depreciation on capital assets:  Management’s estimate of useful lives
is based on industry practice and experience. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions 
used to develop the useful lives used in determining depreciation and found that it is reasonable 
in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

We encountered no difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our audit.

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the 
audit, other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management.  

There were 2 adjustments made by management as a result of audit procedures:

1. To adjust inventory.
2. To accrue accounts payable.
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To the Board of Directors
Three Lakes Water and Sanitation District
Grand Lake, Colorado
Page 2 of 2

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a financial 
accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be 
significant to the financial statements or the auditor’s report. We are pleased to report that no such 
disagreements arose during the course of our audit.

Recommendations
In planning and performing our audit of the District’s financial statements as of and for the year ended 
December 31, 2023, we noted the following opportunities for improvement of internal controls and day-to-
day operations.

Inventory Reconciliation
It was noted in our audit that inventory has not been counted since fiscal year 2022. While we do not
anticipate the inventory to have a material effect on the District’s financial position, it is highly 
recommended that inventory counts are performed annually in order to properly document and reconcile 
the District’s assets.

Management Representations

As is required in an audit engagement we have requested certain representations from management that 
are included in the management representation letter.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Directors, management, and 
others within the organization and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than 
those specified parties.

Sincerely,

McMahan and Associates, L.L.C.
Avon, Colorado
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Directors
Three Lakes Water and Sanitation District, Colorado
Grand Lake, Colorado

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinions 

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, and 
each major fund of the Three Lakes Water and Sanitation District, Colorado (the “District”), as of and for 
the year ended December 31, 2023, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively 
comprise Three Lakes Water and Sanitation District’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of 
contents.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, and each major 
fund of the Three Lakes Water and Sanitation District as of December 31, 2023, and the respective 
changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“U.S. GAAP”).

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America (“U.S. GAAS”). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be 
independent of the District and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant 
ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

The District’s management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in accordance with U.S. GAAP, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of 
internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or 
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Three Lakes Water and Sanitation 
District’s ability to continue as a going concern for one year after the date that the financial statements are 
issued.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Board of Directors
Three Lakes Water and Sanitation District
Grand Lake, Colorado

A2

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 
includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance 
and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with U.S. GAAS will always detect 
a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from 
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material 
if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment 
made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements. 

In performing an audit in accordance with U.S. GAAS, we: 

 Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 
 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 

fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such 
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial statements.

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is 
expressed.

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the 
financial statements.

 Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, 
that raise substantial doubt about the District’s ability to continue as a going concern for a 
reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control–related 
matters that we identified during the audit.

Required Supplementary Information

U.S. GAAP require the Management’s Discussion and Analysis in section B be presented to supplement 
the basic financial statements.  Such information is the responsibility of management and, although not a 
part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who 
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an 
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to 
the required supplementary information in accordance with U.S. GAAS, which consisted of inquiries of 
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for 
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other 
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion 
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with 
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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Three Lakes Water and Sanitation District
Grand Lake, Colorado

A3

Required Supplementary Information (continued)

The budgetary comparison information in section E is not a required part of the basic financial statements 
but is supplementary information required by U.S. GAAP.  Such information has been subjected to the 
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional 
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting 
and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements 
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with U.S. GAAS.  In our opinion, the 
information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the District’s basic financial statements. The individual fund budgetary comparison information 
in section F is presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic 
financial statements.

The individual fund budgetary comparison information is the responsibility of management and was 
derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic 
financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit 
of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling 
such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic 
financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in 
accordance with U.S. GAAS. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in 
relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

McMahan and Associates, L.L.C.
Avon, Colorado
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Three Lakes Water and Sanitation District

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2023

As management of the Three Lakes Water and Sanitation District (“District”), we offer readers of the 
District’s financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the District 
for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the District’s basic financial 
statements.  The District’s basic financial statements comprise three components: 1) government-wide 
financial statements; 2) fund financial statements; and 3) notes to the financial statements.  This report 
also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.  

Government-wide financial statements:  The government-wide financial statements are designed to 
provide readers with a broad overview of the District’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector 
business.

The Statement of Net Position presents information on all the District’s assets, deferred outflows of 
resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources, with the differences reported as net position.  
Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial 
position of the District is improving or deteriorating.

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the government’s net position changed 
during the most recent fiscal year.  All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying 
event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.  Thus, revenues 
and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future 
fiscal periods (i.e. uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the District that are principally 
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that 
are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-
type activities).  The governmental activities of the District primarily include administration.  The business-
type activities of the District are the sewer services.  The government-wide financial statements can be 
found on pages C1 and C2 of this report.

Fund financial statements:  A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control 
over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives.  The District, like other state 
and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related 
legal requirements.  All of the funds of the District can be divided into two categories: governmental funds 
and proprietary funds.

Governmental funds:  Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions 
reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.  However, unlike the 
government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows 
and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end 
of the fiscal year.  Such information may be useful in evaluating a government’s near-term financing 
requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial 
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar 
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.  By doing 
so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing 
decisions.  The governmental funds provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between 
governmental funds and governmental activities.
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Overview of the Financial Statements (continued)

Governmental funds (continued): The District adopts an annual appropriated budget for each of its 
funds.  Budgetary comparison schedules have been provided as supplementary information to the 
financial statements.

Proprietary fund:  The District maintains an enterprise fund.  The enterprise fund is used to report the 
same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements.  The 
District uses enterprise funds to account for the sewer services provided by the District.  

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only 
in more detail.  The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information for each of the 
business-type services provided by the District.

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages C6 through C8 of this report.  The 
District adopts an annual appropriated budget for its Proprietary Funds and budgetary comparison 
schedules have been provided on page F1 of this report to demonstrate compliance with these budgets.

Notes to the Financial Statements:  The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full 
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.  The Notes to 
the Financial Statements can be found starting on page D1 of this report.

Financial Analysis of the District

Three Lakes Water and Sanitation District’s
Net Position

2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022

Assets:

Current assets 745,735         782,658  6,578,763   5,397,982   7,324,498   6,180,640   

Capital and other assets -                  -           16,330,376 17,109,784 16,330,376 17,109,784

  Total Assets 745,735         782,658  22,909,139 22,507,766 23,654,874 23,290,424

Liabilities & Deferred Inflows:

Current liab & def inflows 274,638         258,376  364,399      348,486      639,037      606,862      

Long-term liabilities -                  -           3,835,328   4,010,611   3,835,328   4,010,611   

  Total Liabilities & Def Inflows 274,638         258,376  4,199,727   4,359,097   4,474,365   4,617,473   

Net Position:

Net investment in

capital assets -                  -           12,319,965 12,928,107 12,319,965 12,928,107

Restricted 10,000           10,000    -               -               10,000        10,000        

Unrestricted 461,097         514,282  6,389,447   5,220,562   6,850,544   5,734,844   

  Total Net Postion 471,097         524,282  18,709,412 18,148,669 19,180,509 18,672,951

Governmental Business-type

Activities Activities Total

The largest portion of the District’s net position is reflected in the net investment in capital assets (i.e. 
land, buildings, sewer lines, lift stations, treatment plant, vehicles and equipment).  At the end of 2023, 
this accounted for 64% of the total net position.  Accordingly, this portion of the net position is not an 
available source for payment of future spending.  Of the remaining net position 3% of the governmental 
activities annual budget is restricted for use in the event of an emergency. 
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Financial Analysis of the District (continued)

Three Lakes Water and Sanitation District’s
Change in Net Position

2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022

Revenues:

Program revenues:

  Charges for services -                  -           2,454,353   2,295,724   2,454,353   2,295,724   

  Capital grants & contributions -                  -           226,525      270,900      226,525      270,900      

General revenues:

  Property taxes 257,283         254,542  -               -               257,283      254,542      

  Other taxes 16,504           16,077    -               -               16,504        16,077        

  Interest and other revenue 535                 583          314,256      93,350        314,791      93,933        

Total Revenues 274,322         271,202  2,995,134   2,659,974   3,269,456   2,931,176   

Expenses:

Sewer -                  -           2,434,391   2,345,355   2,434,391   2,345,355   

General government 327,507         324,708  -               -               327,507      324,708      

Total Expenses 327,507         324,708  2,434,391   2,345,355   2,761,898   2,670,063   

Change in Net Position (53,185)          (53,506)   560,743      314,619      507,558      261,113      

Net Position - Beginning 524,282         577,788  18,148,669 17,834,050 18,672,951 18,411,838

Net Position - Ending 471,097         524,282  18,709,412 18,148,669 19,180,509 18,672,951

Activities Activities Total

Governmental Business-type

Governmental activities:  Net position of the governmental activities decreased $53,185 during 2023
after a decrease of $53,506 during 2022.  The District is using property taxes collected for administrative 
costs.

Business-type activities:  Net position of the business-type activities increased $560,743 during 2023
after an increase of $314,619 during 2022.  

As mentioned earlier, the District uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with 
finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental funds:  The focus of the District’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-
term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources.  Such information is useful in assessing the 
District’s financing requirements.  In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure 
of a government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the District’s governmental funds reported an ending fund balance
of $471,097 .  Of this balance, $10,000 is restricted for emergencies as required by TABOR, and the 
remaining $461,097 is unassigned.  

Proprietary funds:  The District’s Proprietary Funds provide the same type of information found in the 
government-wide financial statements, but in more detail.

The enterprise fund operating revenues of $2,454,353 exceeded operational expenses of $2,338,225 , 
resulting in an operating income of $116,128 . Interest income of $314,256, operating payroll of $412,027
and unused contingency caused a lesser deficiency in change of net position than budgeted. 

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the District’s enterprise fund reported an ending net position
balance of $18,709,412 which consisted of $12,319,965 in net investment in capital assets and the 
remaining $6,389,447 being unrestricted for use by the District in future years.
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Budget variances:  Variances in the general fund were mostly in line with budget and netted positively to 
$35 primarily due to a decrease in specific ownership taxes than budgeted netted with overall savings in 
expenditures. The enterprise fund had mostly positive variances.  These positive variances netted to 
$977,797.  The large overall positive variance was due largely to lower capital outlays, and a positive 
contingency budget. Details of the variances by fund can be seen on pages E1 through F2 of this report.

Capital assets:  The District‘s total capital assets decreased by $779,408 as a result of capital outlays 
less than depreciation expense.  Additional information as well as a detailed classification of the District’s 
net capital assets can be found in the Notes to the Financial Statements.

Long-term debts:  During 2023 the District continued to make scheduled payments on its long-term 
debts.  Details of the District’s long-term obligations are contained in the Notes to the Financial 
Statements.

Request for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the District’s finances for all those with 
an interest in the government’s finances.  Questions concerning any of the information provided in this 
report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the Three Lakes Water and 
Sanitation District, PO Box 899, Grand Lake, CO 80447, phone 970-627-3544.
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Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total

Assets:
Cash and investments 471,097          6,218,639       6,689,736       
Accounts receivable, net of

allowance for uncollectibles -                  78,740            78,740            

Taxes receivable - ensuing year 274,638          -                  274,638          
Inventory -                  35,293            35,293            
Other assets -                  246,091          246,091          
Capital assets, not being depreciated -                  234,127 234,127          
Capital assets, net -                  16,096,249 16,096,249     
   Total Assets 745,735          22,909,139     23,654,874     

Liabilities:
Accounts payable -                  49,038            49,038            
Accrued liabilities -                  96,285 96,285            
Accrued interest payable -                  15,046            15,046            
Unearned user fees -                  28,947 28,947            
Noncurrent liabilities:
    Due within one year -                  175,083 175,083          
    Due in more than one year -                  3,835,328 3,835,328       
   Total Liabilities -                  4,199,727       4,199,727       

Deferred Inflow of Resources:
Deferred taxes receivable 274,638          -                  274,638          
   Total Deferred Inflow of Resources 274,638          -                  274,638          

Net Position:
Net investment in capital assets -                  12,319,965     12,319,965     
Restricted for emergencies 10,000            -                  10,000            
Unrestricted 461,097          6,389,447       6,850,544       
   Total Net Position 471,097          18,709,412     19,180,509     

Three Lakes Water and Sanitation District
Statement of Net Position

December 31, 2023

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
C1
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Net (Expense) Revenue and

Operating Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and Governmental Business-type

Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total
Functions/Programs:
 Governmental Activities:

General government 327,507          -              -                -                (327,507)        (327,507)         
     Total Governmental Activities 327,507          -              -                -                (327,507)        (327,507)         

 Business-type Activities:
Sewer 2,434,391       2,454,353   -                226,525        246,487         246,487          

Total Business-type Activities 2,434,391       2,454,353   -                226,525        246,487         246,487          

General Revenues:
Taxes:

Property tax 257,283         -                 257,283          
Specific ownership tax 16,504           -                 16,504            

Investment earnings 535                314,256         314,791          
    Total General Revenues and Transfers 274,322         314,256         588,578          

Change in Net Position (53,185)          560,743         507,558          

Net Position - Beginning 524,282         18,148,669    18,672,951     

Net Position - Ending 471,097         18,709,412    19,180,509     

Three Lakes Water and Sanitation District
Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended December 31, 2023

Program Revenues Changes in Net Position

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
C2
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Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 471,097
Property tax receivable - ensuing year 274,638

       Total Assets 745,735          

Liabilities, Deferred Inflow of Resources, 

and Fund Balances:

  Deferred Inflow of Resources:
 Unavailable property tax revenue 274,638

       Total Deferred Inflow of Resources 274,638          

  Fund Balances:
Restricted for TABOR reserve 10,000            
Unassigned 461,097          

       Total Fund Balances 471,097          

       Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflow of 
           Resources, and Fund Balances 745,735          

    Net Position of Governmental Activities 471,097          

Three Lakes Water and Sanitation District
Balance Sheet
General Fund

December 31, 2023

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
C3

Preliminary Draft



Revenues:
Property taxes 257,283        
Specific ownership taxes 16,504          
Interest income 535               

       Total Revenues 274,322        

Expenditures:
County treasurer's fees 12,881          
Salaries and wages 208,078        
Car and mileage allowance 1,054            
Employee insurance 72,777          
Miscellaneous expense 1,247            
Office supplies 2,390            
Pension Plan - ICMA 401 13,895          
Retirement Plan - ICMA 457 15,185          

       Total Expenditures 327,507        

Change in Fund Balances (53,185)         

Fund Balances - Beginning 524,282        

Fund Balances - Ending 471,097        

Three Lakes Water and Sanitation District
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

General Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2023

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Assets:
Cash 6,218,639       5,241,542       
Accounts receivable, net of

allowance for uncollectibles 78,740 47,052
Inventory 35,293            35,293            
Other assets 246,091          74,095            
Capital assets, not being depreciated 234,127 234,127          
Capital assets, net of depreciation 16,096,249 16,875,657     
   Total Assets 22,909,139     22,507,766     

Liabilities:
Accounts payable 49,038            64,802            
Accrued liabilities 96,285            74,402            
Unearned user fees 28,947 22,562            
Accrued interest payable 15,046 15,654
Noncurrent liabilities:
    Due within one year 175,083          171,066
    Due in more than one year 3,835,328       4,010,611       
   Total Liabilities 4,199,727       4,359,097       

Net Position:
Net investment in capital assets 12,319,965     12,928,108     
Unrestricted 6,389,447       5,220,561       
   Total Net Position 18,709,412     18,148,669     

Three Lakes Water and Sanitation District
Statement of Net Position

Enterprise Fund
December 31, 2023

2023 2022

(With Comparative Totals for 2022)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Revenues:
Charges for sewer services 2,217,242            2,106,926         
Other service revenue 35,210                 29,233              
Service contract revenue 113,516               108,744            
Miscellaneous revenue 88,385                 50,821              

      Total Revenues 2,454,353            2,295,724         

Expenses
Administrative 209,769               174,981            
Operating 1,269,344            1,172,965         
Depreciation 859,112 897,775

Total Expenses 2,338,225            2,245,721         

Operating Income (Loss) 116,128               50,003              

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
Tap fees 226,525               270,900            
Interest income 314,256               93,350              
Interest expense (96,166)                (99,634)             

   Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 444,615               264,616            

Change in Net Position 560,743               314,619            

Net Position - Beginning 18,148,669          17,834,050       

Net Position - Ending 18,709,412          18,148,669       

20222023

Three Lakes Water and Sanitation District
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

Enterprise Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2023

(With Comparative Totals for 2022)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
C6

Preliminary Draft



Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Cash received from customers 2,429,050      2,300,500   
Cash paid for goods and services (1,123,452)     (853,305)     
Cash paid to employees (521,538)        (492,309)     

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 784,060         954,886      

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities:
Tap fees received 226,525         270,900      
Loan payments (171,266)        (167,533)     
Interest paid on debt (96,774)          (100,507)     
Acquisition of capital assets (79,704)          (86,379)       

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital and
 Related Financing Activities (121,219)        (83,519)       

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Investment earnings received 314,256         93,350        

Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities 314,256         93,350        

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 977,097         964,717      
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning 5,241,542      4,276,825   
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Ending 6,218,639      5,241,542   

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to
 Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:

Operating income (loss) 116,128         50,003        
Adjustments:
   (Increase) decrease in accounts receivable (31,688)          7,153          
   (Increase) decrease in inventory -                 10,842        
   (Increase) decrease in other assets (171,996)        (56,564)       
   Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and (15,764)          39,342        
    accrued liabilities 21,883           8,712          
   Increase (decrease) in unearned user fees 6,385             (2,377)         
   Depreciation 859,112         897,775      

         Total Adjustments 667,932         904,883      

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 784,060         954,886      

Three Lakes Water and Sanitation District
Statement of Cash Flows

Enterprise Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2023

2023 2022

(With Comparative Totals for 2022)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Three Lakes Water and Sanitation District
Notes to the Financial Statements

December 31, 2023

D1

I. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Three Lakes Water and Sanitation District (the “District”) was formed in 1971 to provide sanitary 
services located in the northeastern portion of Grand County, Colorado. 

The District’s financial statements are prepared in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles (“GAAP”).  The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”) is 
responsible for establishing GAAP for state and local governments through its pronouncements 
(Statements and Interpretations).  The more significant accounting policies established by GAAP 
used by the District are discussed below.

A. Reporting Entity

The reporting entity consists of (a) the primary government; i.e., the District, and (b) 
organizations for which the District is financially accountable.  The District is considered 
financially accountable for legally separate organizations if it is able to appoint a voting 
majority of an organization's governing body and is either able to impose its will on that 
organization or there is a potential for the organization to provide specific financial 
benefits to, or to impose specific financial burdens on, the District.  Consideration is also 
given to other organizations, which are fiscally dependent; i.e., unable to adopt a budget, 
levy taxes, or issue debt without approval by the District.  Organizations for which the 
nature and significance of their relationship with the District are such that exclusion would 
cause the reporting entity's financial statements to be misleading or incomplete are also 
included in the reporting entity.

Based on the criteria above, the District is not financially accountable for any other entity 
nor is the District a component unit of any other government.

B. Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

The District’s basic financial statements include both government-wide (reporting the 
District as a whole) and fund financial statements (reporting the District’s major funds).  
Both the government-wide and fund financial statements categorize primary activities as 
either governmental or business-type.  The District’s administration is classified as 
governmental activities.  The District’s sewer operations are classified as business-type 
activities.

The government-wide Statement of Activities reports both the gross and net cost of each 
of the District’s functions and business-type activities.  The functions are also supported 
by general government revenues (property and specific ownership taxes, investment 
earnings, etc.).  The Statement of Activities reduces gross expenses (including 
depreciation) by related program revenues and operating and capital grants.  Program 
revenues must be directly associated with a function or a business-type activity.  
Operating grants include operating-specific and discretionary (either operating or capital) 
grants while the capital grants column reflects capital-specific grants.

The government-wide focus is on the sustainability of the District as an entity and the 
change in the District’s net position resulting from the current year’s activities.
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Three Lakes Water and Sanitation District
Notes to the Financial Statements

December 31, 2023
(Continued)

D2

I. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

C. Fund Financial Statements

The financial transactions of the District are reported in individual funds in the fund 
financial statements.  Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of self-
balancing accounts that comprises its assets, liabilities, reserves, fund equity, revenues 
and expenditures/expenses.  

The fund focus is on current available resources and budget compliance.

The District reports the following governmental funds:

The General Fund is the District’s administration fund.  It accounts for property 
taxes and a portion of the costs of administration of the District.

The District reports the following proprietary or business-type funds:

The Enterprise Fund accounts for sewer operations and a portion of 
administration.  

D. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

Measurement focus refers to whether financial statements measure changes in current 
resources only (current financial focus) or changes in both current and long-term 
resources (long-term economic focus).  Basis of accounting refers to the point at which 
revenues, expenditures, or expenses are recognized in the accounts and reported in the 
financial statements. Financial statement presentation refers to classification of revenues 
by source and expenses by function.

1. Long-term Economic Focus and Accrual Basis

Proprietary funds use the long-term economic focus and are presented on the 
accrual basis of accounting.  Revenues are recognized when earned and 
expenses are recognized when incurred, regardless of the timing of the related 
cash flows.

2. Current Financial Focus and Modified Accrual Basis

The governmental fund financial statements use the current financial focus and 
are presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting.  Under the modified 
accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recorded when susceptible to accrual; 
i.e., both measurable and available.  “Available” means collectible within the 
current period or soon enough thereafter (60 days) to be used to pay liabilities of 
the current period.  Expenditures are generally recognized when the related 
liability is incurred.  The exception to this general rule is that principal and interest 
on general long-term debt, if any, is recognized when due.
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Three Lakes Water and Sanitation District
Notes to the Financial Statements

December 31, 2023
(Continued)

D3

I. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

D. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation
(continued)

3. Financial Statement Presentation

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers and 
applicants for goods, services or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and 
contributions, and 3) capital grants and contributions, including special 
assessments.  Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues
rather than as program revenues.  Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-
operating items.  Operating revenues and expenses generally result from 
providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a 
proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations.  The principal operating revenues 
of the District’s enterprise fund are charges to customers for sales and services.  
Operating expenses for the enterprise funds include the cost of sales and 
services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets.  All 
revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating
revenues and expenses.

E. Financial Statement Accounts and Accounting Policies

1. Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, the District considers cash on 
hand, demand deposits, U.S. government obligations and other highly liquid 
investments with maturities of three months or less when purchased to be cash 
equivalents.

2. Investments

Investments are stated at fair value, net asset value, or amortized cost. The 
change in fair value of investments is recognized as an increase or decrease to 
investment assets and investment income.  

3. Receivables

User charges constitute a perpetual lien on or against property served until paid. 
Such liens may be foreclosed upon as provided by Statute, or certified to the 
Grand County Treasurer for collection on its tax rolls, as provided by Statute.  
Therefore, no provision for uncollectible accounts has been made in the financial 
statements.

4. Property Taxes

Property taxes are assessed in one year as a lien on the property, but not 
collected by governmental units until the subsequent year.  In accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles, the assessed but uncollected property 
taxes have been recorded as a receivable and as unavailable property tax 
revenue.
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Three Lakes Water and Sanitation District
Notes to the Financial Statements

December 31, 2023
(Continued)
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I. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

E. Financial Statement Accounts and Accounting Policies

5. Inventory

Inventory is determined at the lower of cost (determined on the first-in, first-out 
basis) or market.

6. Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include land, water rights, construction in progress, 
buildings and improvements, sewer lines, lift stations, treatment plant, vehicles
and equipment, are reported in the financial statements.  The District defines 
capital assets as assets with an initial cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated 
useful life in excess of five years.  Such assets are recorded at historical cost.  
Donated capital assets are recorded at acquisition value at the date of donation.

Capital outlay for projects is capitalized as projects are constructed.  Interest 
incurred during the construction phase is expensed as incurred.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the 
asset or materially extend the life of the asset are not capitalized.  Improvements 
are capitalized and depreciated over the remaining useful lives of the related 
fixed assets, as applicable. Buildings and improvements, infrastructure, vehicles, 
and equipment are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following 
estimated useful lives:

Asset Years

Vehicles and equipment 5 to 7 years

Buildings and improvements 15 to 30 years

Lift stations 10 years

Sewer system 30 to 40 years

7. Net Position

Net position represents the difference between assets, liabilities, and deferred 
inflows (outflows) of resources. Net investment in capital assets consists of 
capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding 
balances of any borrowing used for the acquisition, construction or improvement 
of those assets and increased by any unspent proceeds from related borrowings. 
Net position is reported as restricted when there are limitations imposed on their 
use either through the enabling legislation adopted by the District or through 
external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors or laws or regulations of other 
governments. All other net position is reported as unrestricted. The District 
applies restricted resources first when an expense is incurred for purposes for 
which both restricted and unrestricted net position is available.
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Three Lakes Water and Sanitation District
Notes to the Financial Statements

December 31, 2023
(Continued)
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I. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

E. Financial Statement Accounts and Accounting Policies (continued)

8. Compensated Absences

Earned but unused vacation and sick benefits are accrued when incurred in the 
financial statements. The District accrued $43,366 for accumulated unpaid 
vacation pay and $22,819 for accumulated unpaid sick at December 31, 2023.

9. Long-term Obligations

Long-term debt is recognized as a liability of a governmental fund when due, or
when resources have been accumulated for payment early in the following year.
Long-term obligations for proprietary funds are recognized when the related
liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of the related cash flows.

10. Deferred Inflows of Resources

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a 
separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial 
statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of 
net assets that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an 
inflow of resources (revenue) until that time.  Property taxes levied in 2023 for 
collection in 2024 are reported as deferred inflows of resources.

11. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles requires the District’s management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the 
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial 
statements, and the reported amount of revenues and expenditures or expenses 
during the reporting period.  Actual results could differ from those estimates.

12. Categories and Classification of Fund Balance

The District classifies governmental fund balances as follows:

Non-spendable - includes fund balance amounts that cannot be spent either 
because it is not in spendable form or because of legal or contractual 
requirements.

Restricted – includes fund balance amounts that are constrained for specific 
purposes which are externally imposed by providers, such as creditors or 
amounts constrained due to constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Committed – includes fund balance amounts that are constrained for specific 
purposes that are internally imposed by the District through formal action of the 
highest level of decision making authority which is the Board of Directors
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I. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

E. Financial Statement Accounts and Accounting Policies (continued)

12. Categories and Classification of Fund Balance (continued)

Assigned – includes spendable fund balance amounts that are intended to be 
used for specific purposes that are neither considered restricted or committed.  
Fund balance may be assigned by the Board of Directors or its management 
designee.

Unassigned - includes residual positive fund balance within the General Fund 
which has not been classified within the other above mentioned categories.  
Unassigned fund balance may also include negative balances for any 
governmental fund if expenditures exceed amounts restricted, committed, or 
assigned for those specific purposes.

The District uses restricted amounts to be spent first when both restricted and 
unrestricted fund balance is available unless there are legal documents/contracts 
that prohibit doing this, such as in grant agreements requiring dollar for dollar 
spending.   Additionally, the District first uses committed, then assigned, and 
lastly unassigned amounts of unrestricted fund balance when expenditures are 
made.

The District does not have a formal minimum fund balance policy. However, the
District’s budget includes a calculation of a targeted reserve positions and 
management calculates targets and reports them annually to Board of Directors.

II. Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability

A. Budgetary Information

In the fall of each year, the District’s Board of Directors formally adopts a budget with 
appropriations for the ensuing year pursuant to the Colorado Local Budget Law. The 
budget is adopted on a non-GAAP basis and is reconciled to GAAP in Section E of this 
report.  Expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations at the fund level and all 
appropriations lapse at year-end.

As required by Colorado statutes, the District followed the required timetable noted below 
in preparing, approving, and enacting its budget for 2023.  

1. For the 2023 budget year, prior to August 25, 2022, the County Assessor sent to 
the District an assessed valuation of all taxable property within the District’s 
boundaries.  The County Assessor may change the assessed valuation on or 
before December 10 only once by a single notification to the District.

2. The District submitted, on or before October 15, 2022, a recommended budget 
that detailed the necessary property taxes needed along with other available 
revenues to meet the District’s operating requirements.
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II. Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability (continued)

A. Budgetary Information (continued)

3. Prior to December 15, 2022, after a required publication of “Notice of Proposed 
Budget” and a public hearing, the District certified to the County Commissioners 
a levy rate that derived the necessary property taxes as computed in the 
proposed budget, and the District adopted the proposed budget and an 
appropriating resolution that legally appropriated expenditures for the upcoming 
year.

4. After adoption of the budget resolution, the District may make the following 
changes: a) approve supplemental appropriations to the extent of revenues in 
excess of estimated revenues in the budget; b) approve emergency 
appropriations; and c) reduce appropriations for which originally estimated 
revenues are insufficient.

Taxes levied in one year are collected in the succeeding year.  Thus, taxes certified in 
2022 were collected in 2023 and taxes certified in 2023 will be collected in 2024.  Taxes 
are due on January 1 in the year of collection; however, they may be paid in either one 
installment (no later than April 30) or two equal installments (not later than February 28 
and June 15) without interest or penalty.  Taxes that are not paid within the prescribed 
time bear interest at varying rates per month until paid.  

At December 31, 2022, the District’s General Fund expenditures exceeded 
appropriations. This may be a violation of budget law.

B. TABOR Amendment  

In November 1992, Colorado voters amended Article X of the Colorado Constitution by 
adding Section 20; commonly known as the Taxpayer's Bill of Rights (“TABOR”).  TABOR 
contains revenue, spending, tax and debt limitations that apply to the State of Colorado 
and local governments.  

TABOR also requires local governments to establish an emergency reserve to be used 
for declared emergencies only.  Emergencies, as defined by TABOR, exclude economic 
conditions, revenue shortfalls, or salary or fringe benefit increases.  The reserve is 
calculated at 3% of fiscal year spending.  Fiscal year spending excludes bonded debt 
service and enterprise spending. For this purpose, the District has set aside $10,000.

The District believes it is in compliance with the financial provisions of TABOR.  However, 
TABOR is complex and subject to interpretation.  Many of its provisions, including the 
interpretation of how to calculate fiscal year spending limits and qualification as an 
enterprise, will require judicial interpretation.
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III. Detailed Notes on All Funds

A. Deposits and Investments

The District’s deposits are entirely covered by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation 
(“FDIC”) or by collateral held under Colorado’s Public Deposit Protection Act (“PDPA”).  
The FDIC insures depositors up to $250,000 for all accounts.  Deposit balances over 
$250,000 are collateralized as required by PDPA.  

At December 31, 2023, the District had the following cash and investments with the 
following maturities:

Standard & 

Poors Rating

Carrying 

Amounts

Less than 

one year 1 - 5 years

Petty cash Not rated 400           400           -          

Cash with County Treasurer Not rated 1,261 1,261 -          

Deposits:

       Checking Not rated 489,989     489,989     -          

       Escrow Not rated 10,040      10,040      -          

Investment Pools AAAm 6,188,046  6,188,046  -          

Total 6,689,736  6,689,736  -          

Maturities

At December 31, 2023, the District had the following recurring fair value measurements:

Total

Colotrust 6,153,890    

Total

C-Safe 34,156         

Investments Measured at Net Asset Value

Investments Measured at Amortized Cost

The District has invested in the Colorado Local Government Liquid Asset Trust 
(“COLOTRUST”). COLOTRUST is a 2a7-like pool.  The trust is an investment vehicle 
established for local government entities in Colorado to pool surplus funds.  The trust 
operates similarly to a money market fund and each share is equal in value to $1.  
Investments of the trust consist of U.S. Treasury bills, notes and note strips, and 
repurchase agreements collateralized by U.S. Treasury securities.  A designated 
custodial bank provides safekeeping and depository services to the trusts in connection 
with their direct investment and withdrawal functions.  Substantially all securities owned 
by the trusts are held by the Federal Reserve Bank in the account maintained for the 
custodial bank.  The custodian's internal records identify the investments owned by the 
trusts.  Investments in pools are not categorized since the underlying investments are 
not specifically identifiable to the District.

Interest Rate Risk. Colorado Revised Statutes limit the District’s investment maturities 
to five years or less from the date of purchase. This limit on investment maturities is a 
means of limiting exposure to fair values arising from changes in interest rates. As a 
result of the limited length of maturities, the District has limited its interest rate risk
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III. Detailed Notes on All Funds (continued)

A. Deposits and Investments (continued)

Credit Risk.  The District follows Colorado statutes regarding its investments.
Colorado statutes specify instruments in which local governments may invest, including:

 Obligations of the U.S. and certain U.S. governmental agency securities
 Certain international agency securities
 General obligation and revenue bonds for U.S. local governmental entities
 Bankers acceptances of certain banks
 Commercial paper
 Local government investment pools
 Written repurchase agreements collateralized by certain authorized securities
 Certain money market funds
 Guaranteed investment contracts 

B. Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for 2023 was as follows:

Balance at 

January 1, 

2023 Additions

Deletions and 

Transfers

Balance at 

December 31, 

2023

Capital assets, not being depreciated 

Land 103,699       -              -              103,699       

Rights and easements 101,428       -              -              101,428       

Water rights 29,000         -              -              29,000         

Construction in Progress -              -              -              -              
Total capital assets, not being depreciated 234,127       -              -              234,127       

Capital assets being depreciated

Building and improvements 967,710       -              -              967,710       

Sewer system 32,484,372   5,919           -              32,490,291   

Plant expansion 10,008,589   -              -              10,008,589   

Vehicles and equipment 1,489,144    73,785         -              1,562,929    

Furniture and office equipment 30,608         -              -              30,608         

CAD maps 194,759       -              -              194,759       
Total capital assets being depreciated 45,175,182   79,704         -              45,254,886   

Less accumulated depreciation for 

Building improvements 784,550       17,034         -              801,584       

Sewer system 21,443,325   539,238       -              21,982,563   

Plant expansion 4,950,673    250,214       -              5,200,887    

Vehicles and equipment 898,331       52,286         -              950,617       

Furniture and office equipment 27,887         340             -              28,227         

CAD maps 194,759       -              -              194,759       

Total accumulated depreciation 28,299,525   859,112       -              29,158,637   
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 16,875,657   (779,408)      -              16,096,249   

Capital assets, net 17,109,784   (779,408)      -              16,330,376   
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III. Detailed Notes on All Funds (continued)

C. Long-Term Obligations

Colorado Water Resources and Power Development Authority (“CWRPDA”) Loan

In 2014, CWRPDA and the District, acting through its enterprise, entered into a
$2,000,000 loan agreement to finance lift station improvements. The loan bears interest 
at an annual rate of 2%, and requires payments of $61,971 for principal and interest due 
on May 1 and November 1, commencing on May 1, 2016 and terminating on May 1, 
2035. The District pledges net revenues from enterprise system user fees to repay the 
loan.

In 2019, CWRPDA and the District, acting through its enterprise, entered into a
$3,000,000 loan agreement to finance a copper removal project. The District draws
against the loan as improvement costs are incurred. As of December 31, 2021, the 
District made draws totaling $283,692. The loan bears interest at an annual rate of 2.5%, 
and requires payments of $72,048 for principal and interest due on May 1 and November 
1, commencing on May 1, 2020 and terminating on May 1, 2049. The District pledges net 
revenues from enterprise system user fees to repay the loan.

The following is an analysis of the changes in the District’s long-term obligations for the 
year ended December 31, 2023:

Beginning Ending Due Within

Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year

CWRPDA Loan 2004 1,364,801    -              97,130         1,267,671    99,082         

CWRPDA Loan 2019 2,816,876    -              74,136         2,742,740    76,001         

4,181,677    -              171,266       4,010,411    175,083       

Annual debt service requirements for the loans are as follows:

Year Ended December 31, Principal Interest Total

2024 175,083         92,957      268,040     

2025 178,987         89,053      268,040     

2027 187,060         80,980      268,040     

2028 191,234         76,806      268,040     

2027-2031 1,022,156       340,373     1,362,529  

2032-2036 694,575         211,827     906,402     

2037-2041 580,084         176,886     756,970     

2042-2046 656,812         85,922      742,734     

2047-2049 141,442         2,658        144,100     

4,010,411       1,242,524  5,252,935  

At December 31, 2023, the District had no authorized but unissued debt.

Preliminary Draft
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IV. Other Information  
 

A. Intergovernmental Agreements 
 
The District entered into separate intergovernmental agreements with three other special 
districts whereby the District serves as the Operator of Record of the three water systems 
and performs all operational duties. Pursuant to two of these agreements, the District 
also provides administrative functions. During 2023, the District received $113,516 for 
operational and administrative services under these agreements. 

 
B. Deferred Compensation Plan and Trust 

 
All employees of the District participate in a Deferred Compensation Plan adopted under 
the provisions of Internal Revenue Code Section 457 (Deferred Compensation Plans with 
respect to service for State and Local Governments).  The Plan is administered by ICMA 
Retirement Corporation. 
 
The Deferred Compensation Plan is available to all employees of the District.  Under the 
Plan, the District contributes 7.65% of each employee’s gross salary on a monthly basis.  
The employees may elect to defer a portion of their salaries and avoid paying income 
taxes on the deferred portion.  Invested monies are not available for withdrawal by 
employees until termination, retirement, death, or unforeseeable emergency, but does 
have a loan component. 
 
In accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 457(b), all plan assets and income 
are held in trust for the exclusive benefit of the participants and their beneficiaries.  
During the year ended December 31, 2023, there was $61,131  in benefits remitted to the 
Trustee.  No part of the corpus or income of the Trust shall revert to the Employer or be 
used for or diverted to purposes other than the exclusive benefit of Participants and their 
beneficiaries.   The District has no liability for losses under the 457 Deferred 
Compensation Plan.  Accordingly, it is not a part of the District’s financial statements. 

 
C. 401(a) Money Purchase Plan and Trust 

 
The District provides a Defined Contribution Plan (401 Plan) under Section 401(a) of the 
Internal Revenue Code.  The 401 Plan is administered by ICMA Retirement Corporation. 
 
The 401 Plan is available to all full time employees of the District.  Under the 401 Plan, 
the District contributes 7% of each full time and salaried employee’s gross salary on a 
monthly basis.  This is a “District contribution only” plan.  The District’s contributions do 
not vest until after the first six months of employment. After six months of employment, 
the District’s contributions are 100% vested.    
 
In accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 401(a), all plan assets and income 
are held in trust for the exclusive benefit of the participants and their beneficiaries.  
During the year ended December 31, 2023, the District remitted $41,399  in benefits to 
the Trustee, which represents its cost and required contribution.  No part of the corpus or 
income of the Trust shall revert to the Employer or be used for or diverted to purposes 
other than the exclusive benefit of Participants and their beneficiaries.   The District has 
no liability for losses under the 401(a) Money Purchase Plan.  Accordingly, it is not a part 
of the District’s financial statements. 

 
 
 

Preliminary Draft
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2022
Final Budget

Original Variance
and Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative) Actual

Revenues:
  Taxes:

Property taxes 258,376 257,283      (1,093)         254,542      
Specific ownership taxes 41,000 16,504        (24,496)       16,077
Investment income 500             535             35               583

       Total Taxes 299,876      274,322      (25,554)       271,202      

Expenditures:
County treasurer's fees 17,800 12,881        4,919          12,915        
Salaries and wages 217,018 208,078      8,940          202,901      
Car and mileage allowance 1,000          1,054          (54)              925             
Employee insurance 76,664        72,777        3,887          74,787        
Miscellaneous expense 5,500 1,247          4,253          1,479          
Office supplies 3,000 2,390          610             1,541          
Pension Plan - ICMA 401 15,867        13,895        1,972          14,056        
Retirement Plan - ICMA 457 16,247        15,185        1,062          16,104        

Total Expenditures 353,096      327,507      25,589        324,708      

Net Change in Fund Balance (53,220)       (53,185)       35               (53,506)       

Fund Balance - Beginning 534,465      524,282      (10,183)       577,788      
Fund Balance - Ending 481,245      471,097      (10,148)       524,282      

2023

Three Lakes Water and Sanitation District
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual - General Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2023

(With Comparative Actual Amounts for 2022)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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2022
Final Budget

Original Variance
and Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative) Actual

Revenues:
User charges 2,238,108   2,217,242   (20,866)       2,106,926   
Other service revenue 32,500        35,210        2,710          29,233        
Service contract revenue 117,540      113,516      (4,024)         108,744      
Tap fees 210,000      226,525      16,525        270,900      
Miscellaneous revenue 12,000        88,385        76,385        50,821        
Interest income 100,000      314,256      214,256      93,350        

      Total Revenues 2,710,148   2,995,134   284,986      2,659,974   

Expenditures:

Administrative:

Auditor services 12,772        12,500        272             12,100        

Accountant services 7,300          7,300          -              7,000          

Bank charges 300             (118)            418             408             

Business insurance 71,280        67,626        3,654          63,510        

Computers/related equipment 10,000        18,921        (8,921)         17,437        

Director fees 17,139        10,973        6,166          12,072        

Dues and seminars 5,000          1,191          3,809          2,509          

Election expense 3,000          24               2,976          79               

Equipment/maintenance agreement 5,000          2,635          2,365          2,922          

Legal services 50,000        34,805        15,195        24,803        

Postage/box rent 6,000          4,181          1,819          5,349          

Printing and publications 1,000          1,768          (768)            1,397          

Property repair and maintenance 5,000          28,015        (23,015)       6,212          

Recording fees 200             120             80               608             

Repair and maintenance 5,500          5,166          334             5,424          

Telephone and internet 5,127          4,771          356             4,363          

Utilities - administration building 7,265          7,891          (626)            6,788          

Water rights 2,000          2,000          -              2,000          

213,883      209,769      4,114          174,981      
 Operating:

Payroll 452,261      412,027      40,234        374,658      
Unemployment tax 1,334          624             710             1,042          
Cell phone 1,500          1,382          118             1,422          
Computers/related equipment 8,500          9,167          (667)            11,731        
Dues/training/publications 7,300          475             6,825          600             
Engineering and facilities plan 20,000        1,102          18,898        4,323          
Equipment repairs 5,000          187             4,813          248             
Fuel 25,000        20,554        4,446          21,393        
Employee insurance 117,483      73,982        43,501        73,074        

(continued on next page)

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Funds Available
Three Lakes Water and Sanitation District

(With Comparative Totals for 2022)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2023

Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis) - Enterprise Fund

2023

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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2022
Final Budget

Original Variance
and Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative) Actual

Operating (continued):
Locates - utility notification center 2,000          1,066          934             1,324
Miscellaneous 1,000          60,000        (59,000)       -                  
Office supplies 1,000          -              1,000          452             
Permits and licenses 10,000        9,015          985             9,766
Pension plan - ICMA 401 31,134        27,504        3,630          25,462
Retirement plan - 457 deferred compensation 34,025        29,908        4,117          27,827
SCADA software 41,000        41,015        (15)              43,316
Shop supplies 4,000          2,067          1,933          2,301
System repair and maintenance 120,000      89,816        30,184        127,776
Tools 5,000          1,347          3,653          1,420
Treatment plant - chemicals 66,000        64,294        1,706          32,091
Treatment plant - repair and maintenance 120,000      18,692        101,308      51,004
Treatment plant - telephone 1,100          380             720             759
Treatment plant - utilities 200,000      217,035      (17,035)       199,229
Truck repair and maintenance 5,000          13,124        (8,124)         3,228
Uniform expense 2,500          271             2,229          2,968
Utilities - lift stations 90,000        81,003        8,997          80,914
Utilities - 2 garages 3,000          2,855          145             2,768
Valves 7,000          5,725          1,275          5,736          
Lab - drinking water 10,000 12,802 (2,802)         9,382
Treatment plant - lab 40,000 32,765 7,235          26,489
Treatment plant - sludge hauling 45,000 39,160 5,840          30,262
Contingency 250,000      -              250,000      -              

1,727,137 1,269,344 457,793 1,172,965
Debt service: -              

Principal 268,040 171,266      96,774        167,533      
Interest -              96,166 (96,166)       99,634        

268,040      267,432      608             267,167      

Capital outlay 310,000 79,704        230,296      86,379        
Total Expenditures 2,519,060   1,826,249   692,811      1,701,492   

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
 Over Expenditures 191,088      1,168,885   977,797      958,482      

Funds Available - Beginning 5,130,543   5,220,562   90,019        4,262,080   
Funds Available - Ending 5,321,631   6,389,447   1,067,816   5,220,562   

Reconciliation of Budget to GAAP Basis:
Excess of Revenues over Expenditures 1,168,885   958,482      

Loan principal paid 171,266      167,533      

Capital outlay 79,704        86,379        
Depreciation (859,112)     (897,775)     

Change in Net Position 560,743      314,619      

2023

(With Comparative Totals for 2022)

Three Lakes Water and Sanitation District
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Funds Available 

Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis) - Enterprise Fund (continued)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2023

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Katie Nicholls

From: Mullins, Matthew (he/him/his) <Mullins.Matthew@epa.gov>
Sent: Tuesday, June 25, 2024 5:19 PM
To: Katie Nicholls
Cc: Azari, Alyssa; Nachtrieb, Susan; CommunityGrantsR8
Subject: RE: EPA Community Grants: FY24 Earmarks

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Completed

Caution! This message was sent from outside your organization. Allow sender | Block sender  

 
Good afternoon Katie,    
 
Thanks for reaching out, and sorry to hear of the difficult development.  
 
From our end, the only thing I can see becoming a potential issue is paying for Engineering design services and 
Engineering construction services with CDS funds. Our team has not finished going through the workplan that was 
submitted, but I can provide some guidance based off of what we received already.  
 
The budget within the workplan outlines that CDS funds would be used for both Engineering Desing Services & 
Engineering Construction services. The main conversation piece here is going to revolve around federal competition 
requirements and the FY24 appropriation exemption of contracts entered into prior to March 9, 2024. If the district had 
entered into a contract for these services prior to March 9, then that contract is exempt from the federal requirements.  
 
If the district wants to enter a new contract, they would need to go out to bid and meet the federal procurement 
requirements for such. We can review bid documents to ensure federal compliance prior to you going to bid (or signing 
new contracts). 
 
I am cc’ing a couple of my coworkers in case they have any other input. Happy to set up a meeting to talk more if this 
email is too confusing.  
 
Regards, 
 
Matt Mullins ‐ Environmental Engineer 
EPA ‐ Water Division, Region 8 
(He, Him, His) 
E: Mullins.Matthew@epa.gov 
P: 303.312.6417 
 
For Inquiries on Community Grants please email:  
CommunityGrantsR8@epa.gov 
 
 
 
 



July 1, 2024 

12596  West Bayaud Avenue, Suite 201 
Lakewood, Colorado 80228 

303-952-4850 
 

Katie Nicholls 
District Manager 
Three Lakes Water and Sanitation District 
P.O. Box 899 
Grand Lake, Colorado 80447 
 
Re: Maintaining Project Trajectory and Personnel Team 

Septic to Sewer Project Master Services Agreement  
 

Dear Katie, 

As you and I have discussed, Bob Orsatti is no longer employed at Anchor QEA, effective as of July 
19, 2024. This letter is intended to emphasize Anchor QEA’s commitment to maintaining the Septic 
to Sewer project trajectory and team of personnel that you are already familiar with.  

Bob is now practicing water and wastewater professional engineering through his engineering 
practice, Orsatti Water Consultants. Both Anchor QEA and Orsatti Water Consultants wish to 
continue working together and are committed to provide uninterrupted engineering service to the 
District with minimal disruption. Anchor QEA proposes to hire Bob and Orsatti Water Consultants as 
a subconsultant with no revisions to the existing prime contract between the District and Anchor 
QEA.   

In this updated organization, Bob would retain his role as the technical thought leader and client 
service contact. All other Anchor QEA technical personnel who have been involved with the project 
will maintain their involvements as before. I will take on the role as Anchor QEA’s Principal in Charge 
for the project, having remained connected to the Three Lakes work ever since my close involvement 
in the original proposal and interview. In this role I will provide Anchor QEA's corporate connection 
to the District, and will make sure that the necessary resources continue to be devoted to this 
important work.     

With the long-term plans and programs that are being developed, there is significant value and 
benefit to keeping the team intact.  This approach also allows Anchor QEA to remain on schedule 
with existing and upcoming project work, keeps staff engaged with no disruptions, and maintains a 
project team that is prepared to support the District for many years to come.  Bob and other Anchor 
QEA staff have been continuing to work on District project activities even during this transition 
period to keep District objectives on track. 



July 1, 2024 
Page 2 

Anchor QEA therefore requests that the District accept this subtle change in organizational structure 
and permit Orsatti Water Consultants to be part of Anchor QEA's professional service team under 
our existing Master Services Agreement.  

I am personally committed to ensuring that progress toward the project remains smooth and 
unhindered following this change. In that spirit, I offer to attend upcoming Board meetings as 
appropriate, in-person or virtually, without impact to project billing.  

Both Bob and I are available to speak with you and the Board to address any specific questions or 
concerns, including at the upcoming Board meeting as needed. 

 

Sincerely, 

     

Michael Whelan, P.E.     
Principal Engineer, Anchor QEA 
 

CC: Bob Orsatti, P.E. 
 President, Orsatti Water Consultants 
     



Type Num Date Name Account Paid Amount

Bill Pmt -Check ACH 06/04/2024 IDEXX DISTRIBUTION INC 1006a · UBB ENTERPRISE

Bill 06/04/2024 5148 · LAB - DRINKING WATER -2,724.16
5148 · LAB - DRINKING WATER -358.14

TOTAL -3,082.30

Bill Pmt -Check ACH 06/06/2024 XCEL ENERGY 1006a · UBB ENTERPRISE

Bill 06/03/2024 5090 · UTILITIES - ADMIN BLDG -228.37

TOTAL -228.37

Bill Pmt -Check ACH 06/24/2024 WOODRIVER ENERGY 1006a · UBB ENTERPRISE

Bill 06/18/2024 5208 · PLANT - UTILITIES -9,180.26

TOTAL -9,180.26

Bill Pmt -Check ACH 06/24/2024 GRAINGER 1006a · UBB ENTERPRISE

Bill 06/13/2024 5169 · PLANT - REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE -50.98
5192 · TOOLS -403.34
5169 · PLANT - REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE -136.24

Bill 06/24/2024 5169 · PLANT - REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE -136.24
5169 · PLANT - REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE -336.48

TOTAL -1,063.28

Bill Pmt -Check ACH 06/24/2024 GRAINGER 1006a · UBB ENTERPRISE

Bill 06/24/2024 5169 · PLANT - REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE -1,150.87
5169 · PLANT - REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE -65.05
5169 · PLANT - REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE -38.88
5169 · PLANT - REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE -415.44
5169 · PLANT - REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE -216.22

TOTAL -1,886.46

Bill Pmt -Check ACH 06/24/2024 COMCAST 1006a · UBB ENTERPRISE

Bill 06/20/2024 5075 · TELEPHONE/INTERNET -230.93

2:38 PM THREE LAKES WATER & SANITATION DISTRICT

07/02/24 Check Detail - Enterprise Fund
June 2024

Page 1



Type Num Date Name Account Paid Amount

TOTAL -230.93

Bill Pmt -Check ACH 06/25/2024 CENTURY LINK-LUMEN 1006a · UBB ENTERPRISE

Bill 06/10/2024 5162 · SCADA SOFTWARE/EQUIPMENT LEASE -63.03

TOTAL -63.03

Bill Pmt -Check ACH 06/26/2024 COUNTRY ACE HARDWARE 1006a · UBB ENTERPRISE

Bill 06/18/2024 5169 · PLANT - REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE -44.79
5192 · TOOLS -39.82
5192 · TOOLS -76.74
5169 · PLANT - REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE -15.93
5169 · PLANT - REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE -26.86

TOTAL -204.14

Bill Pmt -Check ACH 06/26/2024 GOTO TECHNOLOGIES USA, INC 1006a · UBB ENTERPRISE

Bill 06/17/2024 5075 · TELEPHONE/INTERNET -154.88
COLUMBINE LAKE WATER DISTRICT 1180 · DUE FROM COLUMBINE LAKE WATER -154.88
NORTH SHORE WATER DISTRICT 1170 · DUE FROM NORTH SHORE WATER -154.88

TOTAL -464.64

Bill Pmt -Check ACH 06/27/2024 WASTE MANAGEMENT 1006a · UBB ENTERPRISE

Bill 06/18/2024 5170 · PROPERTY REPAIR & MAINTENANCE -282.48
5169 · PLANT - REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE -190.00
5169 · PLANT - REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE -282.47

TOTAL -754.95

Bill Pmt -Check ACH 06/27/2024 GRAINGER 1006a · UBB ENTERPRISE

Bill 06/25/2024 5169 · PLANT - REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE -136.24

TOTAL -136.24

Bill Pmt -Check ACH 06/29/2024 VERIZON WIRELESS SERVICES LLC 1006a · UBB ENTERPRISE

Bill 06/20/2024 NORTH SHORE WATER DISTRICT 1170 · DUE FROM NORTH SHORE WATER -98.90
COLUMBINE LAKE WATER DISTRICT 1180 · DUE FROM COLUMBINE LAKE WATER -98.90

2:38 PM THREE LAKES WATER & SANITATION DISTRICT

07/02/24 Check Detail - Enterprise Fund
June 2024

Page 2



Type Num Date Name Account Paid Amount

5076 · CELL PHONE -98.90
5075 · TELEPHONE/INTERNET -112.96

NORTH SHORE WATER DISTRICT 1170 · DUE FROM NORTH SHORE WATER -56.72
COLUMBINE LAKE WATER DISTRICT 1180 · DUE FROM COLUMBINE LAKE WATER -56.72

TOTAL -523.10

Bill Pmt -Check 38472 06/10/2024 BBA WATER CONSULTANTS 1006a · UBB ENTERPRISE

Bill 05/29/2024 5067 · LEGAL SERVICE & CONSULTING -5,424.50

TOTAL -5,424.50

Bill Pmt -Check 38473 06/10/2024 BROWNS HILL ENGINEERING & CONTROLS, LLC 1006a · UBB ENTERPRISE

Bill 06/05/2024 5162 · SCADA SOFTWARE/EQUIPMENT LEASE -1,580.00
5162 · SCADA SOFTWARE/EQUIPMENT LEASE -1,372.00

TOTAL -2,952.00

Bill Pmt -Check 38474 06/10/2024 DENALI WATER SOLUTIONS LLC 1006a · UBB ENTERPRISE

Bill 06/06/2024 5185 · PLANT - SLUDGE HAULING -2,219.64

TOTAL -2,219.64

Bill Pmt -Check 38475 06/10/2024 GRAND LAKE HARDWARE INC 1006a · UBB ENTERPRISE

Bill 06/10/2024 5170 · PROPERTY REPAIR & MAINTENANCE -2.75

TOTAL -2.75

Bill Pmt -Check 38476 06/10/2024 PERIZZOLO EXCAVATING 1006a · UBB ENTERPRISE

Bill 06/04/2024 6400 · Systems Improvements -13,146.09

TOTAL -13,146.09

Bill Pmt -Check 38477 06/10/2024 PETER THE GRAND PAINTER 1006a · UBB ENTERPRISE

Bill 06/05/2024 5170 · PROPERTY REPAIR & MAINTENANCE -9,850.00

TOTAL -9,850.00

2:38 PM THREE LAKES WATER & SANITATION DISTRICT

07/02/24 Check Detail - Enterprise Fund
June 2024

Page 3



Type Num Date Name Account Paid Amount

Bill Pmt -Check 38478 06/10/2024 PVS DX, INC 1006a · UBB ENTERPRISE

Bill 06/05/2024 5206 · PLANT - CHEMICALS -1,049.40

TOTAL -1,049.40

Bill Pmt -Check 38479 06/10/2024 Timothy Day CPA PC 1006a · UBB ENTERPRISE

Bill 06/05/2024 5023 · ACCOUNTANT SERVICES -900.00
5023 · ACCOUNTANT SERVICES -6,800.00

TOTAL -7,700.00

2:38 PM THREE LAKES WATER & SANITATION DISTRICT

07/02/24 Check Detail - Enterprise Fund
June 2024

Page 4



Type Date Num Split Amount

1006 · UNITED BUSINESS BANK
1006a · UBB ENTERPRISE
Paycheck 06/04/2024 DD -SPLIT- -3,602.75
Paycheck 06/04/2024 DD -SPLIT- -2,168.18
Paycheck 06/04/2024 DD -SPLIT- -2,899.02
Paycheck 06/04/2024 DD -SPLIT- -2,185.37
Paycheck 06/04/2024 DD -SPLIT- -3,449.74
Paycheck 06/18/2024 DD -SPLIT- -3,500.74
Paycheck 06/18/2024 DD -SPLIT- -3,405.99
Paycheck 06/18/2024 DD -SPLIT- -2,194.24
Paycheck 06/18/2024 DD -SPLIT- -2,627.59
Paycheck 06/18/2024 DD -SPLIT- -2,233.23
Paycheck 06/30/2024 38480 -SPLIT- -369.40
Paycheck 06/30/2024 38481 -SPLIT- -369.40
Paycheck 06/30/2024 38482 -SPLIT- -369.40
Paycheck 06/30/2024 38483 -SPLIT- -369.40
Paycheck 06/30/2024 38484 -SPLIT- -369.40

Total 1006a · UBB ENTERPRISE -30,113.85

1006b · UBB GOVERNMENT
Paycheck 06/04/2024 DD -SPLIT- -2,384.19
Paycheck 06/04/2024 DD -SPLIT- -4,029.98
Paycheck 06/18/2024 DD -SPLIT- -2,454.01
Paycheck 06/18/2024 DD -SPLIT- -4,019.63

Total 1006b · UBB GOVERNMENT -12,887.81

Total 1006 · UNITED BUSINESS BANK -43,001.66

TOTAL -43,001.66

2:40 PM THREE LAKES WATER & SANITATION DISTRICT

07/02/24 Account QuickReport
Accrual Basis As of June 30, 2024

Page 1



THREE LAKES WATER & SANITATION DISTRICT 9:17 AM

Profit & Loss Budget Performance - Enterprise Fund 07/03/2024

June 2024 Accrual Basis

Jun 24 Jan - Jun 24 % of Budget Annual Budget

Ordinary Income/Expense

Income

IGA-INTERGOVERMENTAL AGREEMENTS

4040 · COLUMBINE LAKE WATER IGA 5,929.00 35,634.51 47.99% 74,256.00

4047 · NORTH SHORE WATER IGA 3,937.00 23,622.00 47.02% 50,244.00

4050 · GRAND LAKE METRO DISTRICT IGA 107.00 642.00 47.77% 1,344.00

Total IGA-INTERGOVERMENTAL AGREEMENTS 9,973.00 59,898.51 47.6% 125,844.00

4005 · SEWER USER FEES & PENALTIES 2,505.82 1,178,493.63 49.8% 2,366,376.00

4010 · CONNECTION / INSPECTION PERMITS 100.00 550.00 146.67% 375.00

4030 · LAB REVENUE 625.00 7,115.00 29.04% 24,500.00

4200 · SEWER TAP FEES 21,000.00 351,750.00 223.33% 157,500.00

4201 · Valves income 413.04 2,065.20 68.84% 3,000.00

4300 · INTEREST EARNED 33,056.15 187,701.16 68.38% 274,500.00

4900 · MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE 0.00 311.00 3.89% 8,000.00

4910 · Returned Check Charges 0.00 -320.00 100.0% 0.00

Total Income 67,673.01 1,787,564.50 60.39% 2,960,095.00

Gross Profit 67,673.01 1,787,564.50 60.39% 2,960,095.00

Expense

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

BOARD OF DIRECTOR FEES/EXPENSES

5037 · DIRECTOR WAGES and EXPENSES 4,110.61 5,830.46 36.1% 16,150.00

5038 · DIRECTOR TAXES - SOC SEC/MEDICA 124.00 379.44 102.0% 372.00

Total BOARD OF DIRECTOR FEES/EXPENSES 4,234.61 6,209.90 37.59% 16,522.00

OFFICE EXPENSES

5025 · BANK SERVICE CHARGES 30.00 -1,228.20 -409.4% 300.00

5040 · DUES / SEMINARS / TRAINING 0.00 415.00 13.83% 3,000.00

5050 · EQUIPMENT/MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT 0.00 1,390.25 27.26% 5,100.00

5060 · POSTAGE & BOX RENT 0.00 4,037.40 67.29% 6,000.00

5061 · COMPUTERS / PRINTERS 884.29 11,275.80 46.98% 24,000.00
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5062 · PRINTING & PUBLICATIONS 0.00 0.00 0.0% 1,700.00

5063 · RECORDING FEES 0.00 38.00 19.0% 200.00

5070 · REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE 0.00 1,700.00 28.81% 5,900.00

5075 · TELEPHONE/INTERNET 498.77 1,834.87 36.44% 5,036.00

5090 · UTILITIES - ADMIN BLDG 639.52 4,000.39 52.63% 7,601.00

5170 · PROPERTY REPAIR & MAINTENANCE 10,135.23 88,751.37 164.81% 53,850.00

Total OFFICE EXPENSES 12,187.81 112,214.88 99.58% 112,687.00

5023 · ACCOUNTANT SERVICES 7,700.00 7,700.00 100.0% 7,700.00

5047 · INSURANCE EXPENSE 0.00 0.00 0.0% 69,502.00

5065 · AUDIT & CONSULTING 0.00 0.00 0.0% 13,125.00

5067 · LEGAL SERVICE & CONSULTING 18,914.20 44,968.01 89.94% 50,000.00

5202 · WATER RIGHTS 0.00 0.00 0.0% 2,000.00

Total ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 43,036.62 171,092.79 63.01% 271,536.00

OPERATIONS EXPENSES

FIELD EXPENSES

5140 · EQUIPMENT REPAIR & MAINTENANCE 0.00 1,316.52 26.33% 5,000.00

5147 · FUEL EXPENSE 2,186.23 6,856.40 27.43% 25,000.00

5150 · LOCATES 130.14 274.62 13.73% 2,000.00

5195 · TRUCK REPAIR & MAINTENANCE 623.13 891.02 12.73% 7,000.00

5197 · UTILITIES - LIFT STATIONS 7,777.81 38,867.29 44.57% 87,203.00

Total FIELD EXPENSES 10,717.31 48,205.85 38.2% 126,203.00

OFFICE/SHOP EXPENSES

5076 · CELL PHONE 98.90 395.50 26.37% 1,500.00

5136 · DUES / TRAINING /PUBLICATIONS 0.00 200.00 4.0% 5,000.00

5160 · OFFICE SUPPLIES 0.00 0.00 0.0% 1,000.00

5161 · COMPUTERS / PRINTERS 3,041.28 5,339.15 50.09% 10,660.00

5167 · PERMITS & LICENSES 0.00 1,088.28 10.88% 10,000.00

5183 · SHOP SUPPLIES 0.00 684.92 17.12% 4,000.00

5192 · TOOLS 520.36 2,187.97 43.76% 5,000.00

5196 · UNIFORM EXPENSES 0.00 38.01 1.52% 2,500.00

5198 · UTILITIES - GARAGES (2 EACH) 211.86 1,274.33 42.91% 2,970.00

Total OFFICE/SHOP EXPENSES 3,872.40 11,208.16 26.29% 42,630.00
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PAYROLL EXPENSES - OPERATIONS

5120 · PAYROLL WAGES 36,495.53 209,751.32 41.84% 501,348.00

5121 · ICMA 401 - EMPLOYEE PENSION 2,554.68 14,631.82 42.3% 34,593.00

5122 · ICMA 457 - EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT 2,791.93 15,990.50 42.3% 37,805.00

5123 · MEDICARE TAX 857.27 5,030.39 69.19% 7,270.00

5125 · STATE UNEMPLOYMENT TAX 10.50 296.10 19.69% 1,504.00

5134 · DENTAL INSURANCE 432.82 2,090.42 38.2% 5,472.00

5135 · DISABILITY INSURANCE 252.76 1,654.04 32.59% 5,075.00

5145 · HEALTH & LIFE INSURANCE 7,060.32 42,430.64 37.83% 112,177.00

5146 · FAMLI OPERATIONS 0.00 0.00 0.0% 2,256.00

Total PAYROLL EXPENSES - OPERATIONS 50,455.81 291,875.23 41.25% 707,500.00

TREATMENT PLANT

5169 · PLANT - REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE 3,243.04 12,262.09 10.22% 120,000.00

5206 · PLANT - CHEMICALS 11,469.48 40,777.44 42.48% 96,000.00

5207 · PLANT - TELEPHONE 0.00 0.00 0.0% 1,100.00

5208 · PLANT - UTILITIES 25,880.63 85,741.31 40.83% 210,000.00

Total TREATMENT PLANT 40,593.15 138,780.84 32.49% 427,100.00

5138 · ENGINEERING - GENERAL 15,285.75 30,742.25 153.71% 20,000.00

5152 · MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSE 0.00 0.00 0.0% 1,000.00

5162 · SCADA SOFTWARE/EQUIPMENT LEASE 3,015.03 15,621.12 71.01% 22,000.00

5190 · SYSTEM REPAIR & MAINTENANCE 0.00 43,702.21 36.42% 120,000.00

5200 · VALVES 642.00 642.00 9.17% 7,000.00

Total OPERATIONS EXPENSES 124,581.45 580,777.66 39.42% 1,473,433.00

Z OPERATING EXPENSES

5148 · LAB - DRINKING WATER 6,112.69 8,467.97 84.68% 10,000.00

5149 · PLANT - LAB 1,241.44 12,449.46 31.12% 40,000.00

5185 · PLANT - SLUDGE HAULING 4,504.81 24,546.15 40.43% 60,707.00

Total Z OPERATING EXPENSES 11,858.94 45,463.58 41.07% 110,707.00

Total Expense 179,477.01 797,334.03 42.97% 1,855,676.00

Net Ordinary Income -111,804.00 990,230.47 89.66% 1,104,419.00

Other Income/Expense

Other Expense
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6400 · Systems Improvements 13,146.09 13,146.09 5.26% 250,000.00

6420 · VEHICLE PURCHASE 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00

6430 · COPPER LOAN PRINCIPAL 0.00 0.00 0.0% 144,098.00

Total Other Expense 13,146.09 13,146.09 3.34% 394,098.00

Net Other Income -13,146.09 -13,146.09 3.34% -394,098.00

Net Income -124,950.09 977,084.38 137.56% 710,321.00
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THREE LAKES WATER & SANITATION DISTRICT 9:18 AM

Profit & Loss Budget Performance - Government Fund 07/03/2024

June 2024 Accrual Basis

Jun 24 Jan - Jun 24 % of Budget Annual Budget

Ordinary Income/Expense

Income

MILL LEVY

4110 · PROPERTY TAX -  ADMINISTRATION 14,567.54 308,937.93 112.59% 274,405.00

4120 · SPECIFIC OWNERSHIP TAX 1,186.91 6,627.00 47.34% 14,000.00

4130 · DELINQUENT TAX 0.00 1.23 0.09% 1,400.00

4310 · INTEREST EARNED - COUNTY 0.00 1.23 0.25% 500.00

Total MILL LEVY 15,754.45 315,567.39 108.7% 290,305.00

Total Income 15,754.45 315,567.39 108.7% 290,305.00

Gross Profit 15,754.45 315,567.39 108.7% 290,305.00

Expense

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

PAYROLL EXPENSES - ADMIN

5015 · PAYROLL WAGES 16,566.54 107,812.61 51.68% 208,622.00

5016 · ICMA 457 - EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT 1,267.35 8,228.33 53.54% 15,370.00

5017 · MEDICARE TAX 0.00 0.00 0.0% 3,025.00

5019 · STATE UNEMPLOYMENT TAX 1,970.00 1,970.00 314.7% 626.00

5021 · ICMA 401 - EMPLOYEE PENSION 1,159.66 7,529.13 53.54% 14,064.00

5045 · HEALTH & LIFE INSURANCE 3,958.66 23,757.62 50.01% 47,507.00

5048 · DENTAL INSURANCE - ADMIN 192.00 1,152.00 50.0% 2,304.00

5049 · DISABILITY INSURANCE 111.20 666.96 32.33% 2,063.00

5056 · FAMLI ADMIN 0.00 0.00 0.0% 939.00

PAYROLL EXPENSES - ADMIN - Other 26.28 1,542.00

Total PAYROLL EXPENSES - ADMIN 25,251.69 152,658.65 51.83% 294,520.00

5018 · CAR ALLOWANCE / MILEAGE - ADMIN 88.98 320.39 32.04% 1,000.00

5030 · CNTY TREASURER FEES - MILL LEVY

5030a · Cty Treas Fees Mill Levy (Ent) 730.85 730.85

5030b · Cty Treas Fee Mill Levy (Govt) 0.00 13,509.41 103.92% 13,000.00
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Jun 24 Jan - Jun 24 % of Budget Annual Budget

Total 5030 · CNTY TREASURER FEES - MILL LEVY 730.85 14,240.26 109.54% 13,000.00

5042 · ELECTION EXPENSE 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00

5055 · MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSE 0.00 0.00 0.0% 2,500.00

5057 · OFFICE SUPPLIES 0.00 85.16 2.84% 3,000.00

Total ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 26,071.52 167,304.46 53.28% 314,020.00

Total Expense 26,071.52 167,304.46 53.28% 314,020.00

Net Ordinary Income -10,317.07 148,262.93 -625.19% -23,715.00

Net Income -10,317.07 148,262.93 -625.19% -23,715.00
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Jun 30, 24 Jun 30, 23 $ Change % Change

ASSETS

Current Assets

Checking/Savings

1004 · PETTY CASH 400.00 400.00 0.00 0.0%

1005 · CASH WITH TREASURER 1,260.56 0.00 1,260.56 100.0%

1006 · UNITED BUSINESS BANK

1006a · UBB ENTERPRISE 223,383.86 387,986.38 -164,602.52 -42.4%

1006b · UBB GOVERNMENT 71,397.17 0.00 71,397.17 100.0%

1006 · UNITED BUSINESS BANK - Other 146.26 0.00 146.26 100.0%

Total 1006 · UNITED BUSINESS BANK 294,927.29 387,986.38 -93,059.09 -24.0%

1009 · COLO TRUST

1009a · COLOTRUST - CASH AVAILABLE 3,996,831.55 3,329,107.30 667,724.25 20.1%

1009b · COLO TRUST - GOVT RESERVE 10,000.00 10,000.00 0.00 0.0%

1009c · COLO TRUST - OPERATING RESERVE 1,708,605.00 1,708,605.00 0.00 0.0%

1009d · COLO TRUST - CWRPDA RESTRICTED 380,000.00 380,000.00 0.00 0.0%

1009e · COLO TRUST - CWRPDA RESTRICTED2 370,000.00 370,000.00 0.00 0.0%

1009f · COLO TRUST - GOVT FUND 188,453.45 188,453.45 0.00 0.0%

1009 · COLO TRUST - Other 684,170.08 0.00 684,170.08 100.0%

Total 1009 · COLO TRUST 7,338,060.08 5,986,165.75 1,351,894.33 22.6%

1010 · CSAFE

1010a · C-SAFE - CASH AVAILABLE 34,156.42 33,237.00 919.42 2.8%

1010 · CSAFE - Other 931.66 0.00 931.66 100.0%

Total 1010 · CSAFE 35,088.08 33,237.00 1,851.08 5.6%

1028 · GRAND COUNTY IGA ESCROW FUND

1028a · UBB- ESCROW 10,080.76 10,013.90 66.86 0.7%

1028 · GRAND COUNTY IGA ESCROW FUND - Other -41.74 0.00 -41.74 -100.0%

Total 1028 · GRAND COUNTY IGA ESCROW FUND 10,039.02 10,013.90 25.12 0.3%

Total Checking/Savings 7,679,775.03 6,417,803.03 1,261,972.00 19.7%

Accounts Receivable

1040 · A/R - CERTIFIED TO COUNTY 1,840.17 9,188.37 -7,348.20 -80.0%

1045 · A/R - OTHER 12,146.70 -3,373.36 15,520.06 460.1%

1060 · PROPERTY TAXES RECEIVABLE 274,638.00 258,376.00 16,262.00 6.3%

Total Accounts Receivable 288,624.87 264,191.01 24,433.86 9.3%

Other Current Assets

1003 · UNDEPOSITIED FUNDS 0.00 320.00 -320.00 -100.0%

1030 · A/R - USER FEES 84,116.65 601,912.06 -517,795.41 -86.0%

1070 · PREPAID INSURANCE 68,338.00 66,811.50 1,526.50 2.3%

1160 · INVENTORY - SHOP SUPPLIES 28,697.59 28,697.59 0.00 0.0%

1165 · INVENTORY - LAB SUPPLIES 6,595.75 6,595.75 0.00 0.0%

1170 · DUE FROM NORTH SHORE WATER -590.38 -104.09 -486.29 -467.2%

1180 · DUE FROM COLUMBINE LAKE WATER -705.76 50.68 -756.44 -1,492.6%

Total Other Current Assets 186,451.85 704,283.49 -517,831.64 -73.5%

Total Current Assets 8,154,851.75 7,386,277.53 768,574.22 10.4%

Fixed Assets

FIXED ASSETS

1300 · Assets Not Depreciated 234,127.13 234,127.13 0.00 0.0%

1340 · UTILITY PLANT IN SERVICE 32,490,290.84 32,484,371.63 5,919.21 0.0%

1380 · OFFICE FUNITURE & EQUIPMENT 30,607.67 30,607.67 0.00 0.0%

1400 · PROPERTY IMPROVEMENTS 967,709.00 967,709.00 0.00 0.0%

9:16 AM THREE LAKES WATER & SANITATION DISTRICT

07/03/24 Balance Sheet Prev Year Comparison
Accrual Basis As of June 30, 2024
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Jun 30, 24 Jun 30, 23 $ Change % Change

1430 · CAD MAPS 194,759.33 194,759.33 0.00 0.0%

1450 · Plant Expansion 10,008,589.00 10,008,589.00 0.00 0.0%

1550 · Vehicles & Equipment 1,562,929.17 1,489,144.00 73,785.17 5.0%

Total FIXED ASSETS 45,489,012.14 45,409,307.76 79,704.38 0.2%

1691 · LESS ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION -29,158,636.30 -28,299,523.74 -859,112.56 -3.0%

Total Fixed Assets 16,330,375.84 17,109,784.02 -779,408.18 -4.6%

Other Assets

1870 · SECURITY DEPOSITS 177,753.00 7,283.00 170,470.00 2,340.7%

Total Other Assets 177,753.00 7,283.00 170,470.00 2,340.7%

TOTAL ASSETS 24,662,980.59 24,503,344.55 159,636.04 0.7%

LIABILITIES & EQUITY

Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable

2005 · ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 81,365.28 -130.43 81,495.71 62,482.3%

Total Accounts Payable 81,365.28 -130.43 81,495.71 62,482.3%

Other Current Liabilities

CURRENT LIABILITIES

PAYROLL LIABILITIES

2010 · SOCIAL SECURITY TAX PAYABLE 0.00 186.00 -186.00 -100.0%

2011 · MEDICARE TAX PAYABLE 0.00 724.54 -724.54 -100.0%

2020 · FEDERAL WITHHOLDING TAX PAYABLE 0.00 2,548.00 -2,548.00 -100.0%

2030 · STATE WITHHOLDING TAX PAYABLE 3,954.00 3,593.00 361.00 10.1%

2040 · STATE UNEMPLOYMENT TAX PAYABLE 271.60 -351.17 622.77 177.3%

2050 · ICMA 457 PAYABLE -692.28 2,215.54 -2,907.82 -131.3%

2055 · ICMA 401 PAYABLE 0.00 1,527.07 -1,527.07 -100.0%

2070 · HEALTH, ETC INSURANCE PAYABLE -4,653.23 -16,419.03 11,765.80 71.7%

2100 · WAGES PAYABLE - ACCRUED 21,725.87 0.00 21,725.87 100.0%

2110 · VACATION PAYABLE - ACCRUED 43,365.62 0.00 43,365.62 100.0%

2150 · SICK PAY PAYABLE 22,819.20 -19,360.16 42,179.36 217.9%

PAYROLL LIABILITIES - Other 42.00 0.00 42.00 100.0%

Total PAYROLL LIABILITIES 86,832.78 -25,336.21 112,168.99 442.7%

2200 · DEFERRED PROPERTY TAXES 274,638.00 258,376.00 16,262.00 6.3%

2210 · UNEARNED USER FEES 23,649.82 21,610.01 2,039.81 9.4%

Total CURRENT LIABILITIES 385,120.60 254,649.80 130,470.80 51.2%

Total Other Current Liabilities 385,120.60 254,649.80 130,470.80 51.2%

Total Current Liabilities 466,485.88 254,519.37 211,966.51 83.3%

Long Term Liabilities

LONG TERM LIABILITIES

2190 · CWRPDA INTEREST PAYABLE 15,046.00 0.00 15,046.00 100.0%

2505A · CWRPDA LOAN PAYABLE 1,180,612.46 1,316,478.02 -135,865.56 -10.3%

2505B · CWRPDA LOAN PAYABLE-COPPER 2,742,739.33 2,780,037.78 -37,298.45 -1.3%

Total LONG TERM LIABILITIES 3,938,397.79 4,096,515.80 -158,118.01 -3.9%

Total Long Term Liabilities 3,938,397.79 4,096,515.80 -158,118.01 -3.9%

Total Liabilities 4,404,883.67 4,351,035.17 53,848.50 1.2%

Equity

FUND BALANCE

3103 · INVESTMENT IN CAPITAL ASSETS 12,928,107.07 12,928,107.07 0.00 0.0%

9:16 AM THREE LAKES WATER & SANITATION DISTRICT
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3105 · UNRESERVED UNDESIG FUND BALANCE 5,473,729.07 5,473,729.07 0.00 0.0%

3115 · DESIGNATED FUND BALANCE 10,000.00 10,000.00 0.00 0.0%

Total FUND BALANCE 18,411,836.14 18,411,836.14 0.00 0.0%

32000 · RETAINED EARNINGS 763,909.36 261,111.89 502,797.47 192.6%

Net Income 1,082,351.42 1,479,361.35 -397,009.93 -26.8%

Total Equity 20,258,096.92 20,152,309.38 105,787.54 0.5%

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 24,662,980.59 24,503,344.55 159,636.04 0.7%

9:16 AM THREE LAKES WATER & SANITATION DISTRICT

07/03/24 Balance Sheet Prev Year Comparison
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July 2024 

Superintendent Report 

Lift Stations /Call Outs:   
 
 
Lake Kove Lift Station has a failed underground power line.  The conduit for the new power line 
has been installed and new wire and a disconnect will be installed in the next few weeks. There 
is still a temporary power line in use. 
 
All other lift stations are operating normally with regular checks and maintenance. 

Treatment Plant: 

Operating normally.  We sent 1 large motive pump in for repair. We are still waiting to get it 
back from the repair shop but treatment at the plant remains good. 

Water Systems: 

 North Shore: Operating normally.   
 
Columbine: Operating normally.  
   

Other: 

The new SCADA system will be ready for install in the next month. Browns Hill Engineering 
and Controls has been working on it and just about completed everything on their end for set up 
so the transition should go smoothly. 
  

 

 

 

Mike 

 



 
 
July 1, 2024 
 
 
To:  Board of Directors 
From: Katie Nicholls, District Manager 
RE: District Manager Update 
 
Office Building 
The drainage assessment and recommendations are attached. Matt Reed, Scott Huff and 
Mike Golden have reviewed this and found it to be a viable solution. The project cost is 
estimated to be under $120,000, and therefore is not required to bid out by state statute. 
Mike Gibboni has started reaching out to some local contractors to see if we can get this 
accomplished before the snow flies. Cost is significant, but barring any further unexpected 
costs we should have enough appropriated within the budget. If not, we will need to 
amend the budget to cover the expenses.  
 
PR Firm 
Hiring a PR firm would be greatly beneficial to ensuring the proper message goes out to 
the public regarding our Septic to Sewer Conversion Project. This could help avoid 
situations such as occurred in Columbine Lake with their dissolution election. If the Board 
is interested in possibly pursuing this, I would like to begin research to get basic 
information and touch base with some firms. We would not want to engage too early or it 
will be wasted money, but once we have the go ahead from EPA we can begin the process.   
 
CEBT Increase 
CEBT, our healthcare provider, has informed us that the 2025 increase will be between 
11% - 16%. The increase will be about the same as the general health insurance 
marketplace. Historically increases have ranged from 2% to 7% over the last decade, 
which is well below the industry average. Based upon my research I think we should stay 
with CEBT.  
 
Septic to Sewer Conversion Project 
I submitted the workplan for our project to the EPA for the CDS Grant. This is the first 
step in us receiving the funding officially. They stated in their first email to anticipate 2-3 
rewrites on it.  
 
On June 24, 2024, at their request, I presented a project update to the Three Lakes 
Technical Committee. The committee consists of Northern Water, Bureau of 
Reclamation, Grand County, Colorado River District, Northwest Colorado Council of 
Governments, USGS, USFS, CPW, RMNP, WAPA, Three Lakes Watershed Association, 
GCWIN and more. They continue to support our project and want to see it succeed. It was 
also noted that NWCOGG has recently hired a dedicated grant writer who is available for 
use by their members. I am in the process of looking into membership with NWCOGG 
based upon this information. 
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To: Katie Nicholls, District Manager, Three Lakes Water and Sanitation District 

From: Bob Orsatti, P.E., and Brenden Covert 

  

Re: Three Lakes Water & Sanitation District - District Office Drainage Assessment & 
Recommendations  

 

Introduction 
Three Lakes Water and Sanitation District (the District) has requested Anchor QEA to provide an 
assessment and recommendations to address seasonal drainage problems around the District office 
building structure at 1111 County Road 48, Grand Lake CO. Based on District provided information 
and photographs, it shows that snow deposited on the office building roof periodically slides off 
during the winter season in both the north and south direction. The resulting snow piles to the south 
receive direct solar gain causing accelerated snow melting and refreezing of saturated soils adjacent 
to the foundation.  The condition is different to the north of the building in that much less snow 
accumulates in this area, but it receives no solar exposure and remains frozen for most of the winter 
season.  This likely results in a saturated ground condition for extended time periods, adding to the 
poor soil stability under the existing foundation.  The District is currently rehabilitating the building 
foundation and wishes to implement a plan to mitigate the snow melting and ground saturation 
problem adjacent to the building permanently if possible.  

Anchor QEA has reviewed the information provided by the District which describes the current 
conditions at the Site. After several verbal and written engagements with District staff, Anchor QEA 
developed a conceptual design for the construction of drainage infrastructure designed to contain 
and convey the snow melt away from the building foundation and discharge it at a location where it 
will naturally infiltrate into the local soil matrix without disturbing any existing property or 
infrastructure. This memorandum briefly describes the current conditions at the site, before 
presenting the conceptual design and an Association for the Advancement of Cost Engineering 
(AACE) Level 4 cost estimate to accompany the conceptual design. 

Current Site Conditions 
Site conditions were recently evaluated by Steven “Drew” Hauser, P.E. of Golden Forensics, on 
January 2, 2024, who performed a foundation assessment for the office building (GF 2024). In 
addition to Mr. Hauser’s Report, Anchor QEA has been given site photographs of current conditions. 
Based on Mr. Hauser’s report, the photographs provided by the District, and direct engagement with 
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District staff, Anchor QEA has developed an understanding of the existing conditions contributing to 
the snowmelt saturation of the building foundation soils.  

Image 1  
District Office Building Roof Profile 

 
 

 

 

Image 1 clearly demonstrates snow pile up along the south side of the Site which is likely the result 
of snowplowing efforts that occur throughout the winter to maintain accessible parking spaces at the 
Site. These snow piles are likely exacerbated by slabs of snow that fall from the roof and deposit in 
the area. Considering the southern facing aspect of Site’s roof which generally promotes warming, 
snow that has accumulated on the roof has the potential to slide off the roof. Also evident from 
Figure 1 is the relatively flat local topographic condition along the southern side of the Site. As the 
piles of snow that accumulate over the winter season begin to melt, the snow melt fails to run off 
and ponds next to the building, saturating the local soil conditions. Image 2 provides visual 
confirmation of the saturation excess scenario described above.  
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Image 2  
Pooled Water on South Side of Site 

                                    
 

 

Poor local drainage and the resulting ponding of snow melt up against the building foundation is 
believed to be the pervasive problem to resolve. This is further compounded by the daily 
freezing/thawing cycles that the water and foundation soils is going through daily in the spring.  As 
shown on the following Image 3, water can be seen standing adjacent to the building foundation. 
This condition will only improve through the design and construction of engineered facilities 
intended to contain and convey snow melt away from the building foundation.  

Image 3  
Pooled Water on Inside of Site 
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Image 4  
Snow Pile Up on North Side of Site 

 
 

 

Snow is also prone to significant piling on the North side of the building as evidenced by Image 4. 
The snow piles are likely increased by the drifting of windblown snow in that area, and to a lesser 
degree, by the snow slide condition which was presented earlier as a contributing factor to the piling 
of snow on the south side of the building. Given that north side receives little to no solar gain, snow 
is expected to melt at a slower pace when compared to the south side of the building. As a result, 
ponding snow melt water is not perceived to be as great an issue until much later in the spring.  
However, the snow piles along the north also appear to extend over several windowpanes, blocking 
secondary building egress. For these reasons, Anchor QEA recommends providing an engineered 
solution to manage snow accumulation along the north side of the office building also.  
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Conceptual Design and Cost Estimate 
The conceptual design for the management of snowmelt around the building, and an accompanying 
AACE Class 4 cost estimated are presented in this section. The conceptual design will enhance, 
contain, and direct the snow melting process to convey water away from the building foundation to 
prevent saturation of soils adjacent to the building.  The design incorporates the use of heated 
concrete pads to melt and convey the snow to a below grade French drain system located 6 feet 
away from the building foundation.  The cost estimate has been developed to a level that is 
considered “Study of Feasibility.” These costs are itemized but have not been developed with 
finalized quantities and should be considered appropriate for planning purposes. 

Drainage Plan Conceptual Design 
Figure 1 presents a plan-view map of the site that includes a general layout of the proposed 
stormwater conveyance infrastructure. The design consists of two concrete slabs that will run along 
the length of the southern and northern foundation walls of the office building.  At the outer edges 
of each of the slabs will be a French drain system, composed of perforated Poly Vinyl Chloride (PVC) 
pipe. A trench, 1-foot 6-inches wide will be dug to a depth of 5-feet. At the base of the trench, pipe 
bedding consisting of squeegee and geotextile fabric will be laid around 6-inch perforated PVC pipe. 
The French drain piping will slope at one-eighth of an inch per foot of pipe. Each section of French 
drain will be backfilled with 3-feet 6-inches of Class 4 aggregate to fill the trench to grade. Figures 2, 
and 3 present details for the design of the French Drain system depicted in red on the southern and 
northern edges of the concrete slabs. 

Figure 1 also illustrates the construction of two wye cleanouts and 45-degree bends at the southwest 
and northwest corners of the improvements, connected by a section of solid 6” PVC pipe, sloped at 
one-eighth of an inch per foot of pipe. At the northeastern edge of the slab on the north side, the 
French drain will terminate at a 2 ft. square x 4 ft. deep precast concrete junction box.  This will allow 
the change in pipe material, size and direction and allow O & M access to the 8” outlet pipe.  This 
segment will also be sloped at one-eighth of an inch per foot of pipe and will terminate to the east 
with a flared end section and animal grate, followed by a section of Type L rip rap, 2ft wide by 6 ft. 
long to reduce the local scour erosive forces. 

Regarding the construction of the snow-melt pads, the subgrade will require scarification and 
compaction to 98% standard proctor at optimum moisture. A 2-mil reflective mylar sheeting is then 
laid down to the same limits of the pads, followed by a covering of 1” of clean sand.  As shown on 
Figures 2 and 3, the north and south pads have slightly different heat tracing configurations.  For the 
south pad, three parallel 1” diameter plastic coated galvanized rigid conduits with pull strings are to 
be placed on the sand and covered with 1” more of clean sand, leaving the top surface of all 
conduits exposed.  For the north pad, two, 1” conduits are to be placed in sand under the pad.      
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A two piece expansion joint has been recommended for placement between the foundation walls 
and the new slabs to prevent the new concrete from adhering to the foundation and to provide a 
long term watertight seal at the slab/wall joint.  The upper portion of the joint is proposed to be a 
properly sized hydrophilic waterstop (Adeka model KBA-1510FP), designed to swell on contact with 
water to eliminate any potential void space or leak at the slab/wall interface.  Below this is 
recommended a 4” tall, impregnated fiber waterstop to separate the remaining edge of the 6” slab 
from the foundation.  The concrete slabs will extend out from the expansion joint for 6 ft., at slope of 
2 percent down and away from the foundation. Figures 2, and 3 present details for the design of the 
concrete slabs on the southern and northern ends of the Site. 

Within the 5 sections of 1” GRC, situated on the underneath of the concrete slabs, a Chromalox 
Surface Snow Melting System is recommended to be installed. This system uses an automated 
process to power five individual heating cables (Chromalox SRL, 5 watts/ft) that will run in the 1” 
GRC, the length of the concrete slabs to be electrically energized to keep the concrete slabs 
constantly above freezing, promote constant snow melting, and running into the French drain 
system.  The District is encouraged to engage a local representative for  

Snow Melt Drainage System Construction Cost Estimate 
The cost estimate is presented below in Table 1 and has been developed with estimated quantities 
that have not been finalized.  The intent is to provide the District with a budget level understanding 
of the expected construction costs associated with the conceptual design presented herein. Average 
direct construction costs are brought forward, and appropriate estimating factors have been applied. 
Based on this estimate, the direct labor and materials are estimated at $61.4 K with the total project 
cost including markups and contingencies of approximately $92.1 K. 

The Chromalox system is a substantial portion of the cost estimate and was estimated based on the 
anticipated need for five heating elements. The District is encouraged to engage directly with a local 
representative from Chromalox to confirm the correct sizing and number of heating elements as well 
as provide final system design and installation coordination.  

Anchor QA appreciates the opportunity to assist the District with this drainage assessment. We look 
forward to receiving Staff and Board feedback on this memorandum and our recommendations.  
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Table 1  
Conceptual Design Cost Estimate for Drainage Infrastructure 

 

END 

Item Unit Quantity 
Unit Cost 
(Installed) Total Cost 

6" Perforated PVC Pipe lf 150  $60 $9,000  
6" Solid PVC Pipe lf 80  $65 $5,200  

8" Solid HDPE Pipe lf 110  $85 $9,350  
1" galvanized rigid conduit (GRC) lf 300  $3 $900  

Hydrophilic Expansion Joint lf 140  $4 $560  
Impreg. Fiber Expansion Joint lf 140  $2 $280  

Reflective Mylar Sheeting sf 840  $1 $840  
6" Pipe Cleanout ea 2  $400 $800  

Precast Conc. Junction Box ea 1  $2,000 $2,000  
8" FES, grating & rip rap LS 1  $1,500 $1,500  
AASHTO No. 4 Aggregate cy 30  $50 $1,500  
Squeegee Pipe Bedding cy 28  $50 $1,400  

sand cy 5  $50 $250  
3,000 psi concrete w/ Fiber mesh cy 16  $800 $12,800  
Chromalox Surface Snow Melting LS 1  $15,000 $15,000  

Subtotal    $61,400 
General Conditions (20 %) $12,300  
Contractor Profit (15 %) $9,200  

Construction Contingencies (15 %) $9,200  
Total Construction Costs $92,100  
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South Side Melt Apron Section A
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North Side Melt Apron Section B
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